

Kari Eilola

OCEANOGRAFI Nr 99/2009

On the dynamics of organic nutrients, nitrogen and phosphorus, in the Baltic Sea



Cover picture: Observations (mmol m⁻³) of organic phosphorus defined as total P – inorganic P at the Gotland Deep station BY15 during the period 1995-2008 (data from SHARK). White areas lack observations. The upper black tic marks indicate dates of observations

OCEANOGRAFI Nr 99/2009

On the dynamics of organic nutrients, nitrogen and phosphorus, in the Baltic Sea

Kari Eilola

Abstract

In this report we study the dynamics of organic nutrients, nitrogen and phosphorus, in the Baltic Sea. The results indicate that much of the characteristics of the surface layer dynamics of organic nutrients can be described by the Redfield ratio especially in the Baltic proper. There is however deviations from the Redfield ratio that are discussed and needs to be further investigated. The seasonal variations at all investigated stations indicate that the increase and decrease of the organic phosphorus and nitrogen concentrations in spring and autumn takes place with stoichiometric values different from the Redfield ratio. It is also found that organic phosphorus concentrations start to decrease earlier in summer than organic nitrogen that may continue to increase during summer and early autumn. There is a clear trend with decreasing DIN:DIP ratios in late winter at the Gotland Deep during the period 1995-2008 while there is an improved correlation of the Redfield model during the later part of the period when we have extremely low DIN:DIP ratios. Also the results from the Bothnian bay show that the variability of organic matter is fairly well described by the Redfield model despite the extremely high late winter N:P ratios observed in this region. Hence, the seasonal variability of organic matter seems to be rather independent of the ratio of inorganic nutrients. The variability of the inorganic N to P ratios in late winter and early spring across the Baltic Sea is much larger than seen from the variability of the organic matter. This suggests that other sources than DIN and DIP as sources for new nutrients in spring are used. This is true both in the Baltic proper, where an additional nitrogen source for organic matter production in spring is needed besides inorganic nitrogen, and in the Bothnian Bay, where an additional phosphorus source is needed. Nitrogen fixation by cyanobacteria that grow later in the summer in the southern Baltic Sea can not explain the additional nitrogen source needed in early spring. Future model experiments may reveal more information about the dynamics of organic matter in the Baltic Sea.

Contents

1. INTRODUCTION	7
AREA DESCRIPTION	8
2. METHOD	9
DATA	9
SURFACE LAYER PROXY DATA	9
ANNUAL ANOMALIES	10
3. RESULTS	11
STATISTICAL CHARACTERISTICS	14
IMPROVED CORRELATION OF THE REDFIELD MODEL IN LATER YEARS	15
4. DISCUSSION	15
5. CONCLUDING REMARKS	19
6. ACKNOWLEGEMENTS	19
8. REFERENCES	20

1. Introduction

The aim of the present report is to summarize some characteristics of the dynamics of organic nutrients nitrogen and phosphorus in the Baltic Sea as seen from observations at some standard monitoring stations. The results may serve as a basis to improve our understanding and also to provide a background for future model validations of the dynamics these nutrients.

The pools of organic nutrients in the forms of nitrogen and phosphorus in the Baltic Sea are large. For phosphorus the organic concentrations are of the same order of magnitude as the inorganic fractions and for nitrogen the organic concentrations are relatively much larger. The variability of the observed organic nutrients is large at all depths as seen in the examples from the Gotland Deep in Fig.1.



Figure 1. Upper: Observations (mmol m⁻³) of organic nitrogen (left) and phosphorus (right), defined as total N (P) – inorganic N (P), respectively, at the Gotland Deep station BY15 during the period 1995-2008 (data from SHARK). White areas lack observations. The upper black tic marks indicate dates of observations. **Lower:** Corresponding mean values of organic nitrogen (left) and phosphorus (right) (mmol N m⁻³) and ±1 standard deviation given by error bars.

One may note from Fig.1 that the concentration of organic matter in the deep water is of the same order of magnitude as found in the surface layers and that there is a

large average pool of nitrogen that is usually not exhausted as seen from the observations. The variability of phosphorus however often shows occasions when the variability at all depths ranges from very low to high values. The deepwater variability is not obviously correlated to the local production of organic matter in the surface layer and the seasonal patterns do not show any clear transport patters from the surface towards the depth. This is also indicated by the average organic nutrient concentrations and standard deviations that in general are larger in the surface and the bottom layer than in the intermediate waters. The monthly observations can of course miss some events with high speed sinking organic matter but it seems the impact from deep water dynamics such as inflows and resuspension events, like after the hurricane "Gudrun" in 2005, mainly influence the deep water variability. Further investigations about the dynamics of organic nutrients in the deepwater are out of the scope of the present investigation and are therefore left for future work.

Below we will focus on the surface layer dynamics and the composition of organic matter as it is seen from the seasonal variations of the total concentrations of organic nitrogen and organic phosphorus in the Baltic proper. We will also briefly investigate possible differences between the northern and the southern parts of the Baltic Sea. The discussion is based on the standard Redfield molar composition ratio of fresh organic matter N:P=16:1. Redfield (1934; 1958; 1963) showed that major plant nutrients, such as nitrate and phosphate, change concentrations in seawater in a fixed stoichiometry that is the same as the average N and P stoichiometry of planktonic organisms. The implication that Redfield draw was that organisms control the nutrient concentrations in their distributions. Even though there are no physical or biochemical constraint on the elemental composition of primary production, it seems that the overall average N:P composition of marine particulate matter largely follows the Redfield ratio (see review by Geider and La Roche (2002)). In the shallow semienclosed Baltic Sea one should also remember that the supplies from land and the benthic-pelagic nutrient fluxes highly influences the observed patterns of nutrient concentrations in the water (e.g. Eilola & al, 2009).

Area description

The Baltic Sea is a strongly stratified semi-enclosed basin. Its horizontal and vertical salinity gradients are the result of the large freshwater supply from rivers and net precipitation and of the reduced water exchange with the world ocean (Fig. 2).

The climate of the 20th century is characterized by an average salinity of about 7.4 and a freshwater supply including river runoff and net precipitation of about 16 100 m³ s⁻¹. The average in- and outflows of the Baltic Sea amount to 16,100 m³ s⁻¹ and 32,200 m³ s⁻¹, respectively (applying the well-known Knudsen formulae with surface and bottom layer salinities of 8.7 and 17.4, respectively).

The large-scale horizontal circulation is characterized by cyclonic gyres and the vertical circulation is driven by the inflow of high-saline water from the Kattegat. The bottom water is usually only replaced after so-called Major Baltic Inflows. However, small and medium-strength inflows are important as well since they may renew intermediate layers of the Baltic proper halocline. During inflow events the high-saline water spills over the shallow sills of the Baltic Sea entrance area into the Arkona Basin and Bornholm Basin. Both dense bottom flows and cyclonic eddies renew the deep water of the eastern Gotland Basin. From the Gotland Deep the flow continues via the Northern Deep either into the northwestern Gotland Basin or into the Gulf of Finland. The mean ages of inflowing Kattegat water varies from about 10 years in the

Arkona deep water to more than 40 years in the northern Baltic surface waters (Meier, 2007). Present knowledge about the renewal of the Baltic Sea deep water is summarized e.g. by Meier et al. (2006).



Figure 2. Overview of the RCO model domain. The black line indicates the open boundary in the northern Kattegat. The color bar shows depths in meter. Some standard monitoring stations are indicated by white squares.

2. Method

Data

The data used in the present investigation are from the Swedish Oceanographic Data Centre (SHARK) at the Swedish Meteorological and Hydrological Institute, see <u>http://www.smhi.se</u>. Data from the monitoring stations BY5, BY15, BY31 are used as representative for the Baltic proper and for the comparison with the northern Baltic Sea we use data from station F9 (Fig.2).

Organic phosphorus (OrgP) is defined as Total phosphorus – dissolved inorganic phosphorus (DIP) and organic nitrogen (OrgN) is defined as Total nitrogen – dissolved inorganic nitrogen (DIN) where DIN=NO3+NO2+NH4. Simultaneous observations of all parameters at same dates were a requirement for the computations. Only non negative values of OrgP were used in the data analysis.

Surface layer proxy data

An investigation of available OrgN and OrgP data from 1980-2008 at BY 15 in the upper 10 m (Fig.3) shows that values from 10 m depth has quite similar characteristics as the whole data set. The mean values and standard deviations of

the data sets are shown in Table 1. This suggests that we may use a subset from 10 m depth as a good proxy for the surface layer characteristics of organic matter dynamics.



Figure 3. All available OrgN (left) and OrgP (right) data from the upper 10 m at BY15 (blue dots) and all data from 10 m depth (red dots).

Table 1. Statistical properties of OrgN and OrgP (mmol m⁻³) in the surface layer of BY15.

	OrgN		OrgP	
	0 - 10 m	10 m	0 – 10 m	10 m
Mean value	18.8	19.5	0.36	0.35
Standard deviation	4.1	3.8	0.19	0.19

Annual anomalies

In order to compare the variations of organic nitrogen and phosphorus and discuss its possible coupling to the stoichiometric composition of fresh organic matter according to the Redfield ratio we will study the deviations from annual means in each year.

Thus in each year we first compute the annual mean (M_i) from all available OrgN and OrgP data in year "i" and then we compute the anomalies (Ax_i) for all data x_i relative to the annual mean in each year.

 $Ax_i = x_i - M_i$

For this investigation we extracted only data sets that were complete and available from same dates for N and P respectively. Below the linear equation of the regression between OrgN and OrgP is given by

 $OrgN = m \times OrgP + b$

Equation 1

where OrgN and OrgP denote the anomalies relative to the annual means. Note that the Redfield ratio model is obtained when m=16 and b=0. Below this is called the Redfield model.

In order to reduce the impact from outliers and scarce data sets from the beginning of the period, the subset period 1995-2008 with larger amounts of data available with higher sampling frequency is analyzed specifically. Due to the scarce data cover in the Bothnian Bay only observations from the period 1991-1999 were used.

3. Results

In Fig.4 the inter-annual variations of the annual anomalies at BY15, BY31, BY5 and F9 are shown for observed OrgN as well as for OrgN estimated from OrgP by assuming that the organic matter is composed according to the Redfield molar ratio N:P=16:1.The results from the Redfield model seems to largely follow the variations within the limits of the standard deviation of the observed OrgN at all stations.



Figure 4. Annual anomaly variations (Left) of OrgN (mmol N m⁻³) (red) and the corresponding estimate of OrgN based on the Redfield model, OrgN=OrgP x 16, (blue). The right panel show the corresponding monthly means and ± 1 standard deviation. The stations listed from above and down are BY15, BY31, BY5 and F9.

An investigation about the seasonal variability of the correlation between the anomalies of OrgN and OrgP in the BY15 data set shown in Fig.5 is given in Table 2. The results indicate that the correlation is quite significant on annual basis and during the spring and early summer with the highest correlation (R^2 =0.71) found in late spring. The correlation in late summer and autumn is much lower though it is still significant on less than the 5% level.

Table 2. The regression coefficients m, b, R^2 , and the *p*-value of significance of the anomalies at BY 15 of OrgN and OrgP in the period 1995-2008. The standard deviation of m and b is given in italics in the brackets.

	m	b	R ²	р
Annual	12.7 (1.1)	0.00 (<i>0.17</i>)	0.45	< 0.0001
Jan-Mar	13.7 (<i>3.9</i>)	-0.75 (<i>0.56</i>)	0.24	0.001
Apr-Jun	12.6 (<i>1.3</i>)	-0.90 (<i>0.30</i>)	0.71	< 0.0001
Jul-Sep	9.7 (3.8)	1.68 (<i>0</i> .33)	0.12	0.016
Oct-Dec	7.5 (3.2)	0.39 (<i>0.35</i>)	0.13	0.025

The regression line from BY15 in Fig.5 shows that on an annual basis the annual anomalies of OrgN are significantly correlated to the annual anomalies of OrgP by a factor of 12.7 which is lower than the standard value of the Redfield number. There is a large spread that is indicated by the relatively low R^2 value of 0.45.



Figure 5. The regression analysis at BY 15 between OrgN and OrgP for the period 1995-2008.

We may see from Fig.4 that the anomaly of OrgP is generally at all stations biased to an earlier increase in spring and a faster decrease in autumn than OrgN which might

partly explain the negative value of *b* during spring and the positive *b* during late summer and autumn seen at BY15.

In order to investigate average characteristics and to reduce the impact of single measurements, a five point running mean and the correlation of the running means was computed for BY15 (not shown). Because of the monthly standard monitoring program, except in years with gaps in the data, this filtering approximately makes an average of the actual month and the two months before and after the actual month. From these results it seems that the average characteristics of the anomalies of OrgN and OrgP are significantly correlated with a higher correlation coefficient (R^2 =0.55) than seen from the single data points (Fig.5). The relation between the running mean anomalies of OrgN and OrgP (m=14.7 *(std=1.0))* is higher than the ratio seen from the single data points (m=12.7).

Statistical characteristics

If we investigate the statistical behaviour of the predicted time series of OrgN at BY15 by using the best fit value (m=12.73) of the linear correlation relation between OrgN and OrgP (Fig.5) we find that the variability of the prediction becomes lower than observed (Table 3). The observed OrgN has a standard deviation of 2.93 mmol N m⁻³ while the predicted curve has a standard deviation of 1.94 mmol N m⁻³ which underestimates the standard deviation by about 1.0 mmol N m⁻³. If we require that the predicted data should have the same standard deviation as the observed data (Fig.6) the m value becomes 19.2 which is larger than the Redfield value. Improving the standard deviation of the data set does however not improve the time lag between OrgN and OrgP in spring and autumn. The Redfield model (*std*=2.44 mmol N m⁻³) used in Fig.4 underestimates the standard deviation by about 0.5 mmol N m⁻³.



Figure 6. Annual anomaly variations (Left) of OrgN (mmol N m⁻³) (red) and the corresponding estimate of OrgN based on the best fit of the standard deviation at BY15 (blue). The right panel show the corresponding monthly means and ± 1 standard deviation.

At station BY31 the Redfield model (*std*=1.91 mmol N m⁻³) estimates well the standard deviation of the data (*std*=1.86 mmol N m⁻³) while a prediction with the best linear fit value (m=10.18) show much lower variability (*std*=1.22 mmol N m⁻³). The best fit of the standard deviation is obtained when m=15.6.

At station BY5 the observed standard deviation of OrgN is 2.98 mmol N m⁻³ while the standard deviation of the Redfield model is 2.08 mmol N m⁻³. Applying the best linear fit value (m=9.38) gives *std*=1.22 mmol N m⁻³. The best fit of the standard deviation is obtained when m=23.0.

At station F9 the observed standard deviation of OrgN is 1.32 mmol N m⁻³ while the standard deviation of the Redfield model is much lower, 0.62 mmol N m⁻³. Applying the best linear fit value (m=13.5) gives *std*=0.53 mmol N m⁻³. The best fit of the standard deviation is obtained when m=34.0 which is quite high relative to the Redfield ratio.

Table 3. The standard deviation of observations, the Redfield model and of the best linear fit model. The last column show the m-value of the best fit to the standard deviation.

	Observed Std	Redfield model Std	Best linear fit Std	Standard deviation fit
		510		III-value
BY 5	2.98	2.08	1.22	23.0
BY 15	2.93	2.44	1.94	19.2
BY 31	1.86	1.91	1.22	15.6
F 9	1.32	0.62	0.53	34.0

Improved correlation of the Redfield model in later years

There is a period with quite high scatter in the data from BY5 lasting until about year 2001. The correlation of the regression (R^2 =0.63) is much higher in the later period 2002-2008 than for the entire period 1995-2008 (R^2 =0.17). The m-value (12.7) in the later period is in agreement with the findings from the BY15 regression line. The reason for the scatter in the early period at BY5 is unclear. The standard deviation at BY5 during the period 2002-2008 (std=2.98 mmol N m⁻³) which is much lower than for the whole period 1995-2008 (std=2.98 mmol N m⁻³). Actually the standard deviation of the Redfield model during the same period 2002-2008 is 1.80 mmol N m⁻³, which is close to the observed value. Also BY15 and BY31 stations show less variability during the later period (2.56 and 1.55 mmol N m⁻³, respectively) than in the entire period (2.93 and 1.86 mmol N m⁻³, respectively). Also the standard deviation of the BY15 Redfield model during the period 2002-2008 (s.2.1 mmol N m⁻³) is more in accordance with the observed value.

4. Discussion

The results indicate that much of the characteristics of the surface layer dynamics of organic N and P can be explained by the Redfield ratio especially in the Baltic proper. There is however differences that need to be further explored between the observed variability of organic nitrogen and the predicted time series based on dynamics of organic phosphorus and based on the usage of the Redfield ratio.

The observation that the anomaly of OrgP is biased towards a faster decrease in autumn than OrgN can be due to the faster remineralisation rate and higher degree of recirculation of phosphorus than that of nitrogen in organic matter (eg. Savchuk, 2002). This may cause deviations from the Redfield ratio when looking at the total organic nutrient pool which is done in the present report. It might also be due to increased nitrogen fixation in late summer but it seems hard to use this explanation in the Bothnian Bay where we do not expect any larger amounts of nitrogen fixing cyanobacteria.

The observation that the anomaly of OrgP is biased towards a faster increase in spring than OrgN is perhaps harder to explain. This could be explained if we simply assume that the N:P ratio of newly built organic matter is variable and lower than the Redfield ratio. If we assume that the composition of new organic matter depend on the available inorganic fractions in spring of DIN and DIP this would produce organic matter composed with N:P ratio in the range 4-10 at BY15 and 100-400 at F9 as seen from Fig.7. This is however far from the observed variability of the organic pools of N and P discussed above.

One may note from Fig.7 that there is a clear trend with decreasing DIN:DIP ratios at BY15 from about 10 to about 4 during the period. The trend seems to correspond mainly to an increase of the DIP concentration but also to a decrease of the DIN concentrations during the period. One may note that the improved correlation of the Redfield model during the later part of the time period corresponds to a period when we have extremely low DIN:DIP ratios. The reason for this is not obvious. Also the results from the Bothnian Bay show that the variability organic matter is fairly well described by the Redfield model despite the extremely high N:P ratio observed in this region. Hence, the seasonal variability of organic matter seems to be rather independent of the ratio of inorganic nutrients. This suggests that other sources than DIN and DIP as sources for new nutrients are used.



Figure 7. Left: The maximum observed surface layer (10 m) DIN to DIP ratio (green) in early spring and corresponding DIP (x16) (mmoIPm⁻³) (blue) and DIN (mmoINm⁻³) (red) values at the Gotland Deep station BY15 (Left). Right: The minimum observed surface layer (10 m) DIN to DIP ratio (divided by 100) in early spring and corresponding DIP (x16) (mmoIPm⁻³) and DIN (mmoINm⁻³) values at the Bothnian Bay station F9.

Another explanation for the faster increase of OrgP in spring might be that the nitrogen content in the newly built organic matter is to larger degree than phosphorus based on nutrients mineralized or assimilated from the existing pool of organic

nutrients available in early spring. The total pool of organic nitrogen in spring would then change less than the pool of organic phosphorus since nitrogen are transformed from older organic matter into fresh organic matter. This process should then be independent of latitude in the Baltic Sea in order to explain the similarity between the southern stations and F9.

One might perhaps expect that the much lower DIN:DIP ratios at BY15 in the later period correlates with increased biomasses of cyanobacteria in the following summer. The results from an investigation by Karlson et al. (2009; submitted manuscript) did however not support this hypothesis (cf. Fig.8). The data set used in their study (1999-2007) showed no correlation between excess DIP (=DIP-DIN/16) in winter and total summer cyanobacteria biomass. The explanation for this might be that during the studied period phosphate in surface water is already available in high concentrations during all years. Thus the cyanobacteria growth is likely regulated by other factors. In fact, a correlation between the cloud free fraction of the sky in July and cyanobacteria biomass was observed. One may also note from Fig.8 that cyanobacteria have its major impact in summer time on the dynamics of organic nitrogen. Hence, nitrogen fixation by cyanobacteria that grow later in the southern Baltic Sea.



Figure 8. All observations in the period 1999-2007 of cyanobacteria biovolume from tube sampling 0 - 10 m at BY15. Data provided by Dr. Bengt Karlson at SMHI. The time series is to the left and the monthly scatter to the right.

The variability of organic nitrogen and phosphorus at station F9 is significantly (p<0.0001) correlated to the uptake and release of DIN (Fig.9) and DIP (not shown) though the spread is large, R²=0.34 and 0.12, respectively. The monthly means in Fig.9 show that there is a larger seasonal variability of the inorganic nitrogen than of the organic nitrogen. This might be due to a decrease of OrgN caused by sinking organic matter in summertime and an additional release of inorganic nutrients from sediments in late autumn and winter which therefore is not reflected in a decrease of the pool of pelagic organic matter. The inorganic phosphorus concentrations at F9 are often close to the detection limits since DIP varies below and around about 0.05 mmol m⁻³. This limits the analysis of the phosphorus dynamics at this station. One should also mention that the number of observations in different months (N_m) at F9 (N_m =7, 2, 6, 6, 20, 16, 11, 15, 14, 11, 11, 8, respectively) differ much and that the February mean value is based on only two observations.



Figure 9. Station F9. Left: Annual anomaly variations of OrgN (mmol N m⁻³) (red) and the negative (=inverse) anomaly variation of corresponding DIN (mmol N m⁻³) (blue). The right panel show the corresponding monthly means and ± 1 standard deviation.

It is however obvious from Fig.10 that the variability of DIPx16 and also of TotPx16 is much lower than observed from the variability of DIN. Hence, the variability of phosphorus in combination with the Redfield ratio can not explain the inorganic nitrogen dynamics in the Bothnian Bay. Future investigations using complementary information from model experiments might give more information of possible mechanisms that can explain the dynamics of organic matter in the north.



Figure 10. Station F9. Annual anomaly variations (mmol m⁻³) of DIN (red), 16xDIP (blue) and 16xTotP (black).

There is an unexplained variability of the data sets of organic nutrients that may be due to many other causes. Uncertainties in the measurement methods of nutrient concentrations may have errors which were obvious for example when TotP-DIP became negative in the computations. These values were however not many and were removed manually from the data set. Using a vertically integrated value for the entire surface layer, hence including more of the sinking matter, could give somewhat different results. The choice of using the annual averages of observations as a basis for the estimation of anomalies might have some impact and using another time frame for the analysis than the annual mean value could give slightly different results. It is also likely that the limited number of observations may have an impact. The variability of the organic matter at a single spatial station may be due to advective processes that import a mixture of organic matter that already has degraded and the composition of older organic matter may differ much from the newly produced organic matter. The importance of different factors influencing the variability may be further investigated e.g. by models but these tasks are out of the scope of the present report.

5. Concluding remarks

The results indicate that much of the characteristics of the surface layer dynamics of organic nutrients can be described by the Redfield ratio. There is however a need for additional nutrient sources besides the inorganic nutrients to explain the variability of organic nutrients. In the south there is a need for an additional nitrogen input during the spring and early summer and in the north there is a need for additional phosphorus. Future model experiments may reveal more information about the dynamics of organic matter in the Baltic Sea.

6. Acknowlegements

This work was jointly financed by the Swedish Research Council for Environment, Agricultural Sciences and Spatial Planning (FORMAS) under the contract no.212-2006-1993 and by the project AMBER (Assessment and Modelling Baltic Ecosystem Response) within the BONUS+ program. The latter project is funded by the European Commission and the Swedish Environmental Protection Agency (SEPA) (ref.no. 08/390).

8. References

- Eilola, K., H.E.M. Meier and E. Almroth, 2009, On the dynamics of oxygen, phosphorus and cyanobacteria in the Baltic Sea; A model study. J. Mar. Syst., 75, 163-184.
- Geider, R. J. and J. La Roche, 2002, 'Redfield revisited: variability of C:N:P in marine microalgae and its biochemical basis', European Journal of Phycology,37:1, 1.
- Karlson, B., K. Eilola and M. Hansson, 2009, Cyanobacterial blooms in the Baltic Sea – correlating bloom observations with environmental conditions, Submitted to Proceedings of ISSHA (XIIIth International Conference on Harmful Algae in Hong Kong).
- Meier, H.E.M., 2007: Modeling the pathways and ages of inflowing salt- and freshwater in the Baltic Sea. Estuarine, Coastal and Shelf Science, Vol. 74/4, 717-734.
- Meier, H.E.M., R. Feistel, J. Piechura, L. Arneborg, H. Burchard, V. Fiekas, N. Golenko, N. Kuzmina, V. Mohrholz, C. Nohr, V.T. Paka, J. Sellschopp, A. Stips, and V. Zhurbas, 2006: Ventilation of the Baltic Sea deep water: A brief review of present knowledge from observations and models. Oceanologia, 48(S), 133-164.
- Redfield, A.C., 1934: On the proportions of organic derivatives in sea water and their relation to the composition of plankton. In *James Johnstone Memorial Volume* (Daniel, R.J., editor), pp. 176±192. University of Liverpool.
- Redfield, A.C., 1958: The biological control of chemical factors in the environment. *Am. Sci.*, 46: 205±221.
- Redfield, A. C., B. H. Ketchum and F. A. Richards, 1963: The influence of organisms on the composition of sea-water, *in* The Sea, 2 N. Hill, ed., Interscience, NY, 26– 77.
- Savchuk, O., 2002, Nutrient biogeochemial cycles in the Gulf of Riga: Scaling up field studies with a mathematical model, J. Mar. Syst. 32: 253-280.

SMHIs publiceringar

SMHI ger ut sju rapportserier. Tre av dessa, R-serierna är avsedda för internationell publik och skrivs därför oftast på engelska. I de övriga serierna används det svenska språket.

Seriernas namn

Publiceras sedan

RMK (Rapport Meteorologi och Klimatologi)	1974
RH (Rapport Hydrologi)	1990
RO (Rapport Oceanografi)	1986
METEOROLOGI	1985
HYDROLOGI	1985
OCEANOGRAFI	1985
KLIMATOLOGI	2009

I serien OCEANOGRAFI har tidigare utgivits:

- Lennart Funkquist (1985) En hydrodynamisk modell för spridningsoch cirkulationsberäkningar i Östersjön Slutrapport.
- Barry Broman och Carsten Pettersson. (1985)
 Spridningsundersökningar i yttre fjärden Piteå.
- Cecilia Ambjörn (1986).
 Utbyggnad vid Malmö hamn; effekter för Lommabuktens vattenutbyte.
- 4 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1986). SMHIs undersökningar i Öregrundsgrepen perioden 84/85.
- 5 Bo Juhlin (1986) Oceanografiska observationer utmed svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1985.
- Barry Broman (1986) Uppföljning av sjövärmepump i Lilla Värtan.
- 7 Bo Juhlin (1986)
 15 års mätningar längs svenska kusten med kustbevakningen (1970 - 1985).
- Jonny Svensson (1986)
 Vågdata från svenska kustvatten 1985.
- 9 Barry Broman (1986) Oceanografiska stationsnät - Svenskt Vattenarkiv.

- 11 Cecilia Ambjörn (1987) Spridning av kylvatten från Öresundsverket
- Bo Juhlin (1987)
 Oceanografiska observationer utmed svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1986.
- 13 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1987) SMHIs undersökningar i Öregrundsgrepen 1986.
- 14 Jan-Erik Lundqvist (1987)
 Impact of ice on Swedish offshore lighthouses. Ice drift conditions in the area at Sydostbrotten ice season 1986/87.
- 15 SMHI/SNV (1987)
 Fasta förbindelser över Öresund utredning av effekter på vattenmiljön i Östersjön.
- 16 Cecilia Ambjörn och Kjell Wickström (1987)
 Undersökning av vattenmiljön vid utfyllnaden av Kockums varvsbassäng.
 Slutrapport för perioden 18 juni - 21 augusti 1987.
- 17 Erland Bergstrand (1987)Östergötlands skärgård Vattenmiljön.
- 18 Stig H. Fonselius (1987) Kattegatt - havet i väster.
- 19 Erland Bergstrand (1987) Recipientkontroll vid Breviksnäs fiskodling 1986.

- Kjell Wickström (1987)
 Bedömning av kylvattenrecipienten för ett kolkraftverk vid Oskarshamnsverket.
- 21 Cecilia Ambjörn (1987) Förstudie av ett nordiskt modellsystem för kemikaliespridning i vatten.
- 22 Kjell Wickström (1988)Vågdata från svenska kustvatten 1986.
- 23 Jonny Svensson, SMHI/National Swedish Environmental Protection Board (SNV) (1988)
 A permanent traffic link across the Öresund channel - A study of the hydro-environmental effects in the Baltic Sea.
- 24 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1988) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1987.
- 25 Carsten Peterson och Per-Olof Skoglund (1988)Kylvattnet från Ringhals 1974-86.
- Bo Juhlin (1988)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1987.
- 27 Bo Juhlin och Stefan Tobiasson (1988) Recipientkontroll vid Breviksnäs fiskodling 1987.
- 28 Cecilia Ambjörn (1989) Spridning och sedimentation av tippat lermaterial utanför Helsingborgs hamnområde.
- 29 Robert Hillgren (1989) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1988.
- Bo Juhlin (1989)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1988.
- 31 Erland Bergstrand och Stefan Tobiasson (1989)
 Samordnade kustvattenkontrollen i Östergötland 1988.
- 32 Cecilia Ambjörn (1989) Oceanografiska förhållanden i Brofjorden i samband med kylvattenutsläpp i Trommekilen.

33a Cecilia Ambjörn (1990) Oceanografiska förhållanden utanför Vendelsöfjorden i samband med kylvatten-utsläpp.

- 33b Eleonor Marmefelt och Jonny Svensson (1990)
 Numerical circulation models for the Skagerrak - Kattegat. Preparatory study.
- 34 Kjell Wickström (1990)
 Oskarshamnsverket kylvattenutsläpp i havet - slutrapport.
- Bo Juhlin (1990)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1989.
- 36 Bertil Håkansson och Mats Moberg (1990) Glommaälvens spridningsområde i nordöstra Skagerrak
- 37 Robert Hillgren (1990)SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1989.
- 38 Stig Fonselius (1990)Skagerrak the gateway to the North Sea.
- 39 Stig Fonselius (1990)Skagerrak porten mot Nordsjön.
- 40 Cecilia Ambjörn och Kjell Wickström (1990)
 Spridningsundersökningar i norra Kalmarsund för Mönsterås bruk.
- 41 Cecilia Ambjörn (1990) Strömningsteknisk utredning avseende utbyggnad av gipsdeponi i Landskrona.
- 42 Cecilia Ambjörn, Torbjörn Grafström och Jan Andersson (1990)
 Spridningsberäkningar - Klints Bank.
- 43 Kjell Wickström och Robert Hillgren (1990)
 Spridningsberäkningar för EKA-NOBELs fabrik i Stockviksverken.
- 44 Jan Andersson (1990) Brofjordens kraftstation - Kylvattenspridning i Hanneviken.
- 45 Gustaf Westring och Kjell Wickström (1990)
 Spridningsberäkningar för Höganäs kommun.

- 46 Robert Hillgren och Jan Andersson (1991)
 SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1990.
- 47 Gustaf Westring (1991)
 Brofjordens kraftstation Kompletterande simulering och analys av kylvattenspridning i Trommekilen.
- 48 Gustaf Westring (1991)
 Vågmätningar utanför Kristianopel -Slutrapport.
- 49 Bo Juhlin (1991)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1990.
- 50A Robert Hillgren och Jan Andersson (1992) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1991.
- 50B Thomas Thompson, Lars Ulander, Bertil Håkansson, Bertil Brusmark, Anders Carlström, Anders Gustavsson, Eva Cronström och Olov Fäst (1992). BEERS -92. Final edition.
- 51 Bo Juhlin (1992)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1991.
- 52 Jonny Svensson och Sture Lindahl (1992) Numerical circulation model for the Skagerrak - Kattegat.
- 53 Cecilia Ambjörn (1992) Isproppsförebyggande muddring och dess inverkan på strömmarna i Torneälven.
- 54 Bo Juhlin (1992)
 20 års mätningar längs svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg (1970 - 1990).
- Jan Andersson, Robert Hillgren och Gustaf Westring (1992)
 Förstudie av strömmar, tidvatten och vattenstånd mellan Cebu och Leyte, Filippinerna.
- 56 Gustaf Westring, Jan Andersson, Henrik Lindh och Robert Axelsson (1993)
 Forsmark - en temperaturstudie. Slutrapport.
- 57 Robert Hillgren och Jan Andersson (1993) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1992.
- 58 Bo Juhlin (1993)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1992.

- 59 Gustaf Westring (1993) Isförhållandena i svenska farvatten under normalperioden 1961-90.
- 60 Torbjörn Lindkvist (1994) Havsområdesregister 1993.
- 61 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1994) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1993.
- Bo Juhlin (1994)
 Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1993.
- 63 Gustaf Westring (1995) Isförhållanden utmed Sveriges kust - isstatistik från svenska farleder och farvatten under normalperioderna 1931-60 och 1961-90.
- 64 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1995) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1994.
- 65 Bo Juhlin (1995) Oceanografiska observationer runt svenska kusten med kustbevakningens fartyg 1994.
- 66 Jan Andersson och Robert Hillgren (1996) SMHIs undersökningar utanför Forsmark 1995.
- 67 Lennart Funkquist och Patrik Ljungemyr (1997)Validation of HIROMB during 1995-96.
- 68 Maja Brandt, Lars Edler och Lars Andersson (1998)
 Översvämningar längs Oder och Wisla sommaren 1997 samt effekterna i Östersjön.
- 69 Jörgen Sahlberg SMHI och Håkan Olsson, Länsstyrelsen, Östergötland (2000). Kustzonsmodell för norra Östergötlands skärgård.
- Barry Broman (2001)
 En vågatlas för svenska farvatten.
 Ej publicerad
- 71 Vakant kommer ej att utnyttjas!
- Fourth Workshop on Baltic Sea Ice Climate Norrköping, Sweden 22-24 May, 2002 Conference Proceedings Editors: Anders Omstedt and Lars Axell
- 73 Torbjörn Lindkvist, Daniel Björkert, Jenny Andersson, Anders Gyllander (2003)
 Djupdata för havsområden 2003

- 74 Håkan Olsson, SMHI (2003) Erik Årnefelt, Länsstyrelsen Östergötland Kustzonssystemet i regional miljöanalys
- Jonny Svensson och Eleonor Marmefelt (2003)
 Utvärdering av kustzonsmodellen för norra Östergötlands och norra Bohusläns skärgårdar
- 76 Eleonor Marmefelt, Håkan Olsson, Helma Lindow och Jonny Svensson, Thalassos Computations (2004) Integrerat kustzonssystem för Bohusläns skärgård
- Philip Axe, Martin Hansson och Bertil Håkansson (2004)
 The national monitoring programme in the Kattegat and Skagerrak
- 78 Lars Andersson, Nils Kajrup och Björn Sjöberg (2004)
 Dimensionering av det nationella marina pelagialprogrammet
- 79 Jörgen Sahlberg (2005)
 Randdata från öppet hav till kustzonsmodellerna (Exemplet södra Östergötland)
- 80 Eleonor Marmefelt, Håkan Olsson (2005) Integrerat Kustzonssystem för Hallandskusten
- 81 Tobias Strömgren (2005) Implementation of a Flux Corrected Transport scheme in the Rossby Centre Ocean model
- Martin Hansson (2006)
 Cyanobakterieblomningar i Östersjön, resultat från satellitövervakning 1997-2005
- 83 Kari Eilola, Jörgen Sahlberg (2006) Model assessment of the predicted environmental consequences for OSPAR problem areas following nutrient reductions
- 84 Torbjörn Lindkvist, Helma Lindow (2006) Fyrskeppsdata. Resultat och bearbetningsmetoder med exempel från Svenska Björn 1883 – 1892
- Pia Andersson (2007)
 Ballast Water Exchange areas Prospect of designating BWE areas in the Baltic Proper

- 86 Elin Almroth, Kari Eilola, M. Skogen, H. Søiland and Ian Sehested Hansen (2007)
 The year 2005. An environmental status report of the Skagerrak, Kattegat and North Sea
- 87 Eleonor Marmefelt, Jörgen Sahlberg och Marie Bergstrand (2007)
 HOME Vatten i södra Östersjöns vattendistrikt. Integrerat modellsystem för vattenkvalitetsberäkningar
- 88 Pia Andersson (2007)
 Ballast Water Exchange areas Prospect of designating BWE areas in the Skagerrak and the Norwegian Trench
- 89 Anna Edman, Jörgen Sahlberg, Niclas Hjerdt, Eleonor Marmefelt och Karen Lundholm (2007)
 HOME Vatten i Bottenvikens vattendistrikt. Integrerat modellsystem för vattenkvalitetsberäkningar
- 90 Niclas Hjerdt, Jörgen Sahlberg, Eleonor Marmefelt och Karen Lundholm (2007) HOME Vatten i Bottenhavets vattendistrikt. Integrerat modellsystem för vattenkvalitetsberäkningar
- 91 Elin Almroth, Morten Skogen, Ian Sehsted Hansen, Tapani Stipa, Susa Niiranen (2008) The year 2006 An Eutrophication Status Report of the North Sea, Skagerrak, Kattegat and the Baltic Sea A demonstration Project
- 92 Pia Andersson, editor and co-authors Bertil Håkansson*, Johan Håkansson*, Elisabeth Sahlsten*, Jonathan Havenhand**, Mike Thorndyke**, Sam Dupont** * Swedish Meteorological and Hydrological Institute ** Sven Lovén, Centre of Marine Sciences (2008) Marine Acidification – On effects and monitoring of marine acidification in the seas surrounding Sweden
- 93 Jörgen Sahlberg, Eleonor Marmefelt, Maja Brandt, Niclas Hjerdt och Karen Lundholm (2008)
 HOME Vatten i norra Östersjöns vattendistrikt. Integrerat modellsystem för vattenkvalitetsberäkningar.
- 94 David Lindstedt (2008) Effekter av djupvattenomblandning i Östersjön – en modellstudie

- 95 Ingemar Cato*, Bertil Håkansson**, Ola Hallberg*, Bernt Kjellin*, Pia Andersson**, Cecilia Erlandsson*, Johan Nyberg*, Philip Axe** (2008)
 *Geological Survey of Sweden (SGU)
 **The Swedish Meteorological and Hydrological Institute (SMHI) A new approach to state the areas of oxygen deficits in the Baltic Sea
- Kari Eilola, H.E. Markus Meier, Elin Almroth, Anders Höglund (2008) Transports and budgets of oxygen and phosphorus in the Baltic Sea
- 97 Anders Höglund, H.E. Markus Meier, Barry Broman och Ekaterini Kriezi (2009) Validation and correction of regionalised ERA-40 wind fields over the Baltic Sea using the Rossby Centre Atmosphere model RCA3.0
- 98 Jörgen Sahlberg (2009) The Coastal Zone Model



Sveriges meteorologiska och hydrologiska institut 601 76 NORRKÖPING Tel 011-495 80 00 Fax 011-495 80 01